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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report on 3i GP 2019 Limited (the “Company”) with the financiai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Background and general information

The Company was established on 5 April 2019 and is domiciled in England as a company under the
Companies Act 2006. The registered office of the Company is 16 Palace Street London SW1E 5JD.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the General Partner of 3i PE 2019-22 A LP, 3i PE
2019-22 B LP and PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP (the "Limited Partnerships”). The Company is responsible
for appointing the Manager of the Partnerships.

Development

There have been no changes in the activity of the Company in the year and the Directors do not foresee
any future changes.

Resuits and dividends
Prcfit and total comprehensive income for the year after tax amounted to €668,617 (2021: €68,573).

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year (2021: €ni!). The Directors do not
recommend a final dividend for the year (2021: €nil).

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Directors

The following served as Directors throughout the year and to the date of this report except where
otherwise indicated:

lan Cooper

Jasi Halai
Jonathan C Murphy
Kevin Dunn

Clare Calderwood
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3i GP 2019 Ltd No. 11929444

Directors’ report (continued)

Going concern

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities in relation to the financial statements for the
yearto 31 March 2022. After making the assessment on going concern for a period of at least 12 months
from the date approval of the financial statements, the Directors considered it appropriate to prepare
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis, having considered the impact of the
recent geo-political uncertainties on its current operations and future outlock. The Company has no
direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine therefore this has no significant impact on the Going Concern
assessment of the Company.

Exemption from presenting a Strategic Report

The Directors have taken the exemption available under Section 414B of the Companies Act in not
presenting a Strategic Report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Pursuant to section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that: (a) so far
as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) they
have taken all steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and
KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

By Order of the Board

DocuSigned by:
Jast alal
QEA1STT430D8F41A

Jasi Halai
Director

Registered Office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD

Date: 20 July 2022
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

e assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

» use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Dirgctors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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3i GP 2019 Limited Na. 11629444

Auditor’s report

independent auditor's report to the members of 3i GP 2019 Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i GP 2019 Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31
March 2022 which comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in
equity, the Statement of financial positicn, the Statement of cash flows, and related notes, including the
significant accounting policies in note 1.

In our epinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its profit
for the year then ended;

« have been properly prapared in accardance with UK-adopted international accounting standards,
and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (“1SAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s
financial pasition means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approvai of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company's
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern pericd.

Qur conciusions based on this work:

= we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate;

e we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a maternial
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subseguent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

Auditor’s report (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions
that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.
Qur risk assessment procedures included:

* enquiring of the Directors, the 3i Group plc Audit and Compliance Committee, and 3i Group plc
internal audit and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company's high-level policies and
procedures, as applicable to the Company, to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they
have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

* reading Board minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications
of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control
environment, we performed procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in
particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On
this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation
of revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward, with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post year end and
closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion
with the Directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of
the Company's regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the Directors and other
management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regutations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
including financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits
legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most
likely to have such an effect; anti-bribery, data protection, anti-money laundering and certain aspects
of Company legislation recognising the nature of the Company's activities and its legal form. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.
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3i GP 2018 Limited No. 11929444

Auditor’s report (continued)

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or reguiation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal controls.
Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for
preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and
regulations.

Directors’ report
The directors are responsible for the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover that report and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the directors’ report and, in deing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

« we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report;

* in our opinion the information given in that report for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

= in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the
requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

Auditor’s report (continued)

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
hitps:/fwww. frc_org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
[ﬁlnﬁ_ﬂ_}t
99480498 34BE4AA
Benjamin Pott {(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL

20 July 2022
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year to 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021

€ €

Revenue 1 13,372,349 1,365,339
Gross profit 13,372,349 1,365,339
Operating expenses 2 (12,703,732) (1,297,072)
Profit before tax 668,617 68,267
Income taxes 4 - 306
Profit for the year 668,617 68,573
Profit and total comprehensive income for the 668.617 68.573

year

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations.

Statement of changes in equity

for the year to 31 March 2022

Notes Issued Retained Total equity
capital earnings
€ € €
Balance at 1 April 2020 5 1 {213) (212)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 68,573 68,573
Total equity at 31 March 2021 1 68,360 68,361
Balance at 1 April 2021 1 68,360 68,361
Total comprehensive income for the year - 668,617 668,617
Total equity at 31 March 2022 1 736,977 736,978

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of
these financial statements.

10
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3i GP 2019 Limited Na. 11929444

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 736,978 68,361
Total current assets 736,978 68,361
Total assets 736,978 68,361
Equity
Issued capital 5 1 1
Retained earnings 736,977 68,360
Total equity 736,978 68,361

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of
these financial statements,

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

DocuSigned by:
Jast talai
OEA1STT43DBFA1A
Jasi Halai
Director
Date: 20 July 2022

11
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3i GP 2019 Limited

Statement of cash flows

for the year to 31 March 2022

No. 11929444

Notes 2022 2021
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue received 1 13,372,349 1,365,339
Operating expenses paid 2 (12,703,732) (1,297,072)
Net cash flow from operating activities 668,617 68,267
Net cash flow 668,617 68,267
Opening cash and cash equivalents 68,361 94
Closing cash and cash equivalents 736,978 68,361

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the nctes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of

these financial statements.

12
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3i GP 2019 Limiteg No. 11929444

Significant accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards.

New standards and interpretations

The Company did not implement the requirements of any other standards or interpretations that were
in issue; these were not required to be adopted by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022. No
other standards or interpretations have been issued that are expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Company
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been consistently applied and apply to all years
presented.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities in relation to the financial statements for the
year to 31 March 2022. After making the assessment on going concern, the Directors considered it
appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis, having
cansidered the impact of the recent geo-political uncertainties on its current operations and future
outlook. The Company has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine therefore this has no significant
impact on the Going Concern assessment of the Company.

The financial statements are presented in euros, the functional currency of the Company, being the
currency in which it operates and generates revenue and incurs expenses,

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from cother sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

D Revenue recognition Revenue represents Priority Profit Share which is either variable or fixed
consideration receivable from Limited Partnerships. The Company’s principal activity under the Limited
Partnership Agreements is the provision of General Pariner services over time to the Limited
Partnerships. Revenue is invoiced either quarterly or annually and is recognised in the amount that is
invoiced under the output basis.

E Operating expenses Operating expenses are charged to the Statement of comprehensive
income on an accruals basis.

F Offsetting financial assets and liabilities Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no financial assets and liabilities
are offset in the Statement of financial position.

G Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position
comprise cash at bank.

13
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3i GP 2019 Limited Na. 11929444

Significant accounting policies (continued)

H Incometaxes Income taxes represent the sum of the tax currently payable, and deferred tax. Tax
is charged or credited in the Statement of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. This may differ from the profit
included in the Statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit (‘temporary differences’), and is accounted for using the Statement of
financial position liability methed.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a trarjsaction that affects neither the tax profi
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settied or the asset is realised using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Statement of financial position date.

14



DocliSign Envelope ID: 585D8987-ADAA-461D-9409-2020B7F4492E

3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444
Notes to financial statements
1 Revenue
2022 2021
€ €
Priority profit share 13,372,349 1,365,339
13,372,349 1,365,339
2 Operating expenses
2022 2021
€ €
Management fees 12,703,732 1,297,072
12,703,732 1,297,072

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €7,898 (2021: €7,465) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow

subsidiary.

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are also Directors of fellow subsidiaries and receive remuneration from
3i plc. The table below shows the total emoluments received by the Directors from the fellow subsidiary.

2022 2021

€ €

Salaries and benefits 1,589,829 1,441,072
Bonuses 1,757,209 765,914
Share based payments 1,168,580 930,028
4,515,618 3,137,014

Emoluments, including share based payments, attributable to the highest paid Director were €2,139,588

{2021: €1,442,695).

The Directors do not receive any emoluments from the Company and do not believe it is practicable to
apportion the above amounts to their services as Directors of the Company. The Directors’ services to

the Company do not occupy a significant amount of their time.

No Directors {2021: nil} of the Company accrued retirement benefits under the 3i Group Pension Plan,

a defined benefit scheme.

The Company's contribution to pension schemes on behalf of Directors was €nil for the year to 31 March

2022 (2021: €nil}.

15
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

4 income taxes

2022 2021
€ €
Current tax
Deferred income taxes
Adjustment for prior years - (306)
Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive . (306)
income

Reconciliation of total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive income

The tax charge for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, currently 18%
(2021: 19%), and the differences are explained below:

2022 2021

€ €

Profit before tax 668,617 68,267

sfr?t"gltofine(?g;t?);grz}l:)ltlpiled by rate of corporation tax in the UK 127.037 12,971
Effects of:

Tax losses claimed as group relief for nil consideration (127.,037) (12,971)

Adijustment for prior years - (308)

Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive . (206)

income

16
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3i GP 2019 Limited

4 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income taxes

Deferred tax liability
Accrued priority profit share

Statement of
financial
position
2022

€

No. 11929444

Statement of
comprehensive
income

2p22

€

Deferred tax asset / (liability)

Deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the statement
of comprehensive income

Statement of

Statement of

financial comprehensive
position income
2021 2021
€ €

Deferred tax liability
Accrued priority profit share - (306)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) N B
Deferred tax charge / {credit) in the statement of _ (306)

comprehensive income

In the Finance Bill 2021, the Government announced from 1 Aprit 2023 the corporation tax rate would
increase from 19% to 25%. This new law was substantially enacted on 24 May 2021. This rate has
been used to calculate the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at the year end, and will affect the future

corporation tax liability of the Group.

5 Issued capital

Allotted and called up ordinary shares of
€1 each

Authorised
number of
shares

1

Amount
€

1

At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

6

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is 3i Heldings plc.

Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company's yltimate parent undertaking and controlling party is 3i which is incorporated in the
United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Copies of its group financial statements, which
include the Company, are available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

17
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3i GP 2019 Limited No. 11929444

7 Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with related
parties. Those transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in note 3. There are no other
key management personnel. Each of these categories of related parties and their impact on the financial
statements is detailed below.

Income from Limited Partnerships

The Limited Partnerships are related parties, being the entities for which the Company acts as General
Partner. Total revenue from Limited Partnerships, including the amount of accrued fees receivable at
the end of the year, is detailed below:

2022 2021
Pricrity Accrued at Priority Accrued at
Profit Share  end of year Profit Share end of year
€ € € €
3i PE 2019-22 ALP 12,713,631 - 1,164,191 -
3i PE 2019-22B LP 656,730 - 199,154 -
PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP 1,088 - 1,994 -
13,372,349 - 1,365,339 -

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Management Fees

Totai fees paid to 3i plc, which is appointed by the Company to manage certain Limited Partnerships,
including the amount of accrued fees due at the end of the year, are detailed below:

2022 2021
Management Accrued at Management Accrued at
Fees in year end of year Fees in year end of year
€ € € €
Management fees paid to 3i 12,703,732 - 1,297,072 -

plc

18
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3i GP 2018 Limited No. 11929444

8 Financial risk management

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i. 3i sets objectives, pclicies and processes for managing and
monitoring risk as set out in the Directors' report in the 3i annual report. This note provides further
information on the specific risks faced by the Company.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity. There is sufficient capital in the Company to
cover liabilities and the Company is free to transfer capital to the parent company subject to maintaining
sufficient reserves to meet statutory obligations. No significant constraints have been identified in the
past.

Credit risk

The Directers do not believe that there is significant credit risk as the Company had no receivables as
at 31 March 2022.

Liquidity risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant liguidity risk as the Company had no trade and
other payables as at 31 March 2022.

Market risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant market risk as the Company does not hold fixed or
floating rate loans or [fabilities or investments which are exposed to market fluctuations.

Currency risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant currency risk as in the year ended 2022 the
exposure of the Company to foreign currencies was nil and is expected to remain nil in future years.

19
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i PE 2019-22 A LP (the
"Partnership™ for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plg (“3i"} invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2022 2021

€ €

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year before 147,632,285 50,884,701
carried interest expense

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 115,995,751 50,684,701

Net assets attributable to Partners 748,485,004 436,903,930

Total attributable to Partners 780,121,538 436,903,930

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements
on pages 11 and 13.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €143,360,672 and offset by realised losses
of €6,477.

Asset cash flows were derived fram portfolio income of €727,511 and proceeds from investments of €129,189.
The Partnership also distributed €720,266 to its Partners.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
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Strategic report (continued)

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

« Market price risk

¢  Cumrengy risk

»  Concentration risk

e Credit risk

«  Liquidity risk

» Interest rate risk

» Capital management

The Manager bhas established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement cf the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership's associated risk policies are found in note 9.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

DocuSigned by:
Jas Hala
OEA1STT43D8F41A

Jasi Haiai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 11 May 2022

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members' report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 April 2019 in accordance with its Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA”")
dated 30 April 2020 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership under the Limited Partnership
Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, Lendon, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner
of the Partnership is 3i GP 2019 Limited. The Designated Limited Partner is 3i 2019-22 DLP SCSp.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 12.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at feast 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership’s current performance, financial position
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitor the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the portfolio
investments is limited, therefore this has no significant impact on the Going Concern assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the uncertainties.

The Manager is satisfied through performing stress testing analysis that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn
commitments to draw down from Partners and the Pariners have sufficient resources to be able to pay
commitments on demand. In addition the Partnership is in net current asset position and also has sufficient cash
resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Accordingly, the Manager believes that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
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Members’ report (continued)

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the Members confirms that: (g) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
retevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with clause 11.3 of the LPA, the auditer
will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

DocuSigned by:
D@SE talal

{QEA157743D8F41A

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 11 May 2022

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
Lendon

SWI1E 54D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3556B410-D5B2-40F 7-86B4-885FBYDBF302

3i PE 2019-22 ALP LP020194

Members’ responsibilities statement

The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and the financial
statements. The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members' repart and the financial
statements in accordance with applicabie law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 reguires the Manager to prepare financial statements for each
financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law the
Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted intemational accounting
standards and applicable law.

Under company law the Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgcments and acuounling estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whether they have been prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

+ assess the qualifying partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

« use the going concemn basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying
partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partinerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. They
are respansible for such intemal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements are free from material misstatement whether , due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the qualifying partnership and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3556B41D-D5B2-40F7-8684-885FBYD8FS02

3 PE2019-22 ALP LP020194

Auditor’s report
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i PE 2019-22 A LP

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of 3i PE 2019-22 A LP (the "qualifying partnership”) for the year ended
31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’

accounts, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including the
accounting policies set out in notes A to O.

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (*1SAs (UX)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are
independent of the qualifying parinership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for gur opinion.

Going concern

The Members have prepared the financial statements on the going concem basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the qualifying partnership or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the qualifying partnership's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainfies that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the Members' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the qualifying partnership's
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the qualifying partnership’s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Qur canclusions based on this work:

« we consider that the Members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

» we have not identified, and concur with the Members' assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
refated to events ar conditions that, individuaily or coflectively, may cast significant doubt on the qualifying
partnership’s ability to cantinue as a going cancern far the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in cutcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the qualifying parinership will continue in operation.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an oppartunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

«  enquiring of the Members, the 3i Group plc Audit and Compliance Committee, and 3i Group plc internal
audit and inspection of policy documentation as te 3i Group ple's high-level policies and procedures, as
applicable to the qualifying partnership, to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud,

+ reading meefing minutes of those charged with govemance.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the contral environment, we
performed procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that
management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there
is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of revenue is non-judgmental and
straightforward, with limited cpportunity for maniputation.

We also identified a fraud risk related to the valuation of unquoted investments due to their highly judgemental
nature and use of unabservable inputs in their calculation.

We performed procedures including:

« identifying journal entries to test based on nisk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting
documentation. These included all post year end and closing journals.
s assessing significant accounting estimates relating to valuation of unquoted investments for bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We idenfified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the Members
(as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the Members the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
nen-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the qualifying partnership is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the partnership including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation} and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the qualifying partnership is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of nen-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through
the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
anti-bribery, data protection, anti-money laundering and certain aspects of qualifying partnership legislation
recognising the nature of the qualifying partnership's activities and its legal form. Auditing standards limit the
required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and other management and inspection of regulatory correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational
regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the abifity of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in actordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Qur audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-cempliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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Auditor’s report (continued)
Strategic report and Members’ report

The Members are responsible for the Strategic report and the fembers’ report. Gur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

Qur responsibility is to read the Strategic report and the Members’ réport and, in deing so, consider whether, based
an our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

* we have not identified material misstatements in those reports,

» in our opinion the information given in the Strategic report and the Members’ report for the financial year
15 consistent with the financial statements; and

* inour opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to repcrt to you if, in our
opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

+ certain disclosures of Members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Members’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Members’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the Members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the qualifying partnership’s abiiity to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
hitps:/iwww.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the qualifying partnership's Members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership and its Members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
TomquiAta

BASB3D30609840F
Fang Fang Zhou {Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditar
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL

11 May 2022

10
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Statement of comprehensive income

far the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €

Partfolio income 1 17,196,105 9,667,946
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 142,390,632 44,711,354
Fair value movements on investment entities 5 970,040 -
Beaﬂsed (losses)/profits over value on the disposal of 5 (6.477) 63.060
investments
Gross investment return 160,550,300 54,442 360
Priority profit share 10 {12,713,642) (1,164,195)
Deal related costs 149,894 (2,577,815}
Operating expenses 3 (178} (217)
Fareign exchange losses (354,089) (15,432}
Profit and 'l:ota} comprehensive income for the year 147 632,285 50,684,701
before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 7 {31,636,534) -
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 115,995,751 50,684,701

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing aperations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the naotes on pages 18 to 28 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2022
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account  |oss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 145,094 388,051,560 48707276 436,903,030
accounts
Drawdowns from Partners - 196,305,589 - 196,305,589
Distributions to Partners - {720,266) - (720,266)
145,094 583,636,883 48,707,276 632,489,253
Profit and Total comprehertsive R - 1 15’995,751 1 15'995,751
income for the year
Closing balance of Partners’ 83 63 16 48.4
accounts 145,094 583,636,883 4 703,027 748,485,004
for the year ended 31 March 2021
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 145,004 160,976,812 (1.977.425) 159,144,481
accounts
Drawdowns from Partners - 227,074,748 - 227,074,748
145,094 388,051,560 (1,977,425) 386,219,229
Proﬁt and Total comprehensive i ) 50,684,701 50,684,701
income for the year
Closing balance o '
g balance of Partners 145004 388,051,560 48,707.276 436,903,930

accounts

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 28 form an integral pant of these financial

statements.

12
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €
| Assets
! Non-current assets
‘ Investments
- Unguoted investments 4 757,749,794 437,114,308
- Investment in investment entities 5 22,325,728 -
Total non-current assets 780,075,522 437,114,308
‘ Current assets
: Cash and cash equivalents 58,401 16,725
; Total current assets 58,401 16,725
Total assets 780,133,923 437,131,033
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 7 (31.636,534) -
: Total non-current liabilities (31,636,534) -
| Current liabilities
Payables 6 (12,385) (227.103)
Total current liabilities (12,385) (227,103)
Total liabilities (31,648,919} {227,103)
Net assets attributable to Partners 748,485,004 436,903,830
Represented by:
Capital contributions 145,094 145,094
‘ Loan account 583,636,883 388,051,560
[ Profit and loss accounts 164,703,027 48,707,276
! Net assets attributable to Partners 748,485,004 436,903,930
Carried interest allocation 31,636,534 -
Total attributable to Partners 780,121,538 436,903,930

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 28 form an integral part of these financial
Statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For and on behalf of 3i investments plc

DocuSigred by:

Sast Kalat
OEATST74308F 414

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 11 May 2022
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €

Cash flow from operating activities

Purchase of investments 4 (132,311,264) (223,820,189)
Proceeds from investments 2 129,189 148,987
Deal related costs received/(paid) 149,894 (2.577,815)
Portfolio income received 727,511 10,594
Priority profit share paid (12,713,642) {(1,164,195)
Operating expenses paid (178) (217)
Net cash flow from operating activities {144.018,490) (227,402,835)
Cash flow from financing activities

Distributions paid (720,266) -
Drawdowns’ 145,134,522 227,074,748
Net cash flow from financing activities 144,414,256 227,074,748
Change in cash and cash equivalents 395,766 {328,087)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 16,725 360,244
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations {354,090} (15,432)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 58,401 16,725

The accaunting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 28 form an integral part of these financial
statements,

! The total drawdowns from Partners of €196,305 589 is comprised of €145,134,523 of cash drawdowns, and
€51,171,066 of non-cash drawdowns. As a result, the non-cash element has been excluded from the presentation
within the Statement of cash flows.

14
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Significant accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying
Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

New standards and interpretations

The Partnership did not implement the requirements of any other standards or interpretations that were in issue;
these were not required to be adopted by the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2022. No other standards
or interpretations have been issued that are expected to have a material impact on the Partnership’s financial
statements.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of the Pannership
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been consistently applied and apply to all years presented.

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership’s current performance, financial position
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitor the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the portfolio
investments is limited, therefore this has no significant impact on the Going Concem assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the uncertainties.

The Manager is satisfied through performing stress testing analysis that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn
commitments to draw down from Partners and the Partners have sufficient resources to be able to pay
commitments on demand. In addition the Partnership is in net current asset position and also has sufficient cash
resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Accordingly, the Manager believes that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
histarical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
technigues for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership refate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and O and discussed
in notes 4 and 5. The methodolagy for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming ali portfolic investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfelio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 7

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment management services to investors
for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation; and measuring
and evaluating the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis remain unchanged.

15
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign cumrency transactions are
translated into suros at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction and exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments represent equity and loan instruments which are managed on a fair value basis.
Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery ar settlement of the investment.

Investments are classified as fair value through profit and loss or are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines and IFRS 13, with reference to the most appropriate information
availahle at the time of measurement.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. "Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, canverted into euras using the exchange rates in farce at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note 1.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distibuted amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F  Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into the
following components:

|. Realised profits or losses over value an the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period.

Il. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period.

lll. Fair value movements on investment entities are the movements in the carrying value of the Partnership's
subsidiaries, which are classified as investment entities under IFRS 10. The Partnership makes investments
in portfolio assets through these entities which are limited partnerships or corporate subsidiaries.

IV. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return fram individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there wilt be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration of
the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i Offsetting financial assets and liabilities Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no financial assets and liabilities are offset in the
Statement of financial position.

J  Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank.

K Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations made
in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for as a
deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts. A
distribution is recognised in the year when a distribution notice is issued by the Manager.

L  Capital contributions and loan account Capital contributions and loan account are classified as a
financial liability. Partners have committed amounts to the Partnership in accordance with the LPA. These
commitments will be satisfied through the contribution of capital and loan subscription amounts when admitted to
the Partnership. The amounts and the timings of calls for capital contribution and loan commitments from the
Limited Partners are at the discretion of the General Partner. Capital contributions and loan account are carried at
amortised cost.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase or decrease in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried
interest expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest
results from a decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

O Investments in investment entities The Manager has concluded that an entity meets the definition of
an investment entity where its strategic objective is of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment
management services to investors for the purpose of generating retums in the form of investment income and
capitaf appreciation; and measuring and evaluating the perfarmance of substantially all of its investmerits on a fair
value basis. These entities are typically Limited Partnerships and ather intermediary holding structures which holds
the Partnership’s interest in the underlying investment portfolio.

There are two type of Investment entities identified by the Manager: (a} Investment entities that are controlled by
the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - controlled subsidiaries’; and (b} Investment entities that are
managed by 3i Group plc but not controlled by the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - other. Cantrol, as
defined by IFRS 10, is achieved when the Partnership is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee.

Investments in investment entities which are managed on a fair value basis and are classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value can increase or reduce from either cash flows to and
from the investment entities or from valuation movements in line with the Partnership’s valuation policy. The fair
value of such entities is the fair value of their portfolio investments, subject to any appropriate adjustments, plus
any other net asseéts held by the investment entities.
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Portfolio income
2022 2021
€ €
Interest income 17,176,828 9618,298
Foreigh exchange on interest income 19,277 49,648
17,196,105 9,667,946
2 Realised (losses)/profits over value on the disposal of
investments
Unquoted 2022
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 129,189 129,189
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (135,668) {135,666)
(6,477} (6,477)
Unquoted 2021
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 148,987 148,987
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (85,927) (85,927)
63,060 63,060
3 Operating expenses
2022 2021
€ €
Bank charges 129 217
Other expense 49 -
178 217

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €15,564 (2021: €14,706) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow subsidiary.

4 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises of equity instruments of €489,789,367 (2021: €222,502,542)

and loan instruments of € 267,960,427 (2021: €214,611,766).

The holding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty that investments will be sold

within one year.
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4 Investments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

LP020194

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observabie market

data

Financial instruments
No Level 1 financial instruments

No Level 2 financial instruments

Unquoted equity instruments and loan
instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
2022 2022 2022 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unquoted investments - - 757,749,794 757,748,794
- - 757,749,794 757,748,794
2021 2021 2¢21 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unguoted investments - - 437,114,308 437,114,308
- - 437,114,308 437,114,308

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Partnership did not held any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy authonsed above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the retevant financial reporting period. There were ne transfers in or out of

Level 3 in the year {2021: nil).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

Opening fair value

Additions - cash

Additions — non cash

Additions - deferred consideration
Additions - interest

Disposals, repayments and write-offs
Fair value movement

Closing fair value

2022 2021

€ €
437,114,308 158,784,237
132,311,264 223,820,189
29,588,276 -
12,386 227,103
16,468,594 9,657,352
(135,666) (85,927)
142,390,632 44,711,354
757,749,794 437,114,308
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4 Investments (continued)

A net profit of €159,580,260 (2021: €54,442,360) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits aver value from the
disposal of investments from Level 3 assets.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
pasttion.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E.

The following table summarises the various valuation methodologies used by the Manager to fair value Level 3
instruments, the inputs and the sensitivities applied and the impact of those sensitives to the uncbservable inputs.
The significant majority of the Partnership's portfolio has so far mitigated the impacts of supply chain disruption
and inflation via pricing mechanisms ang diversifying supplier base, an important consideration in the Partnership’s
portfalio vaiuation at 31 March 2G22. Ag part of the Manager's case-by-case review of the Partnership's portfolic
companies the risks and opportunities from climate change are an important consideration in the overall discussion
on fair value. These risks are adequately captured in the multiple sensitivity.

Level 3 unquoted investments

Methodology Description Inputs Fair Sensitivity on Fair value
value at key impact of
31 uncbservable sensitivities
March input
€m €m
Earnings Most commonty  Earnings multiples are 509 +5% 44
useq anate. applied to .the earnings of (2021: (2021: 22)
Equity valuation  the portfolio company to 384)
methodology determine the enterprise -5% (44)

value.

Used for (2021 (22))
investments Earnings multiples

. 9 . P . For the assets
which are When selecting eamings

. A valued ort an
typically multiple, the Manager . .

: gamings basis,
profitable and considers:
. the Manager has
for which we . ’ a
. 1. Comparable listed applied a 5%
can determine a L, e
. companies’ current sensitivity to the
set of listed ; .
A performance and through earnings multiple.
companies and
the cycle averages
precedent
transactions, 2, Relevant market
where relevant,  transaction multiples
with similar . .
iy 3. Exit expectations and

characteristics

other company specific
factors

For point 1 and 2 of the

above the Manager selects

companies in the same
industry and, where
possible, with a similar

business maodel and profile
in terms of size, products,

services and customers,
growth rates and
geographic focus.
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4 Investments (continued)

Level 3 unquoted investments (continued)

LP020194

Methodology  Description Inputs Fair value Sensitivity on
at 31 key

March unobservable

input

€m

Eamings The pre-discount muitiple
{continued) ranges from 8.0x-20.0x
(2021: 14.1x - 16.5x)

Other inputs:

Earnings

Reported earnings are
adjusted for non-recurring
items, such as restructuring
expenses, for significant
corporate actions and, in
exceptional cases, run-rate
adjustments to arrive at
maintainable earnings.

The most commaon
measure is earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation
(‘EBITDA").

Earnings are usually
obtained from portfolio
company management
accounts to the preceding
quarter end, with reference
also to forecast earnings
and the maintainable view
of earnings.

Fair value
impact of
sensitivities

€m

QOther Used where Values of separate 90 A 5% increase
elements of a elements prepared on one (2021: 53) in the closing
business are of the methodologies listed ’ value
valued on above.
different bases

4
(2021: 3)
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5 Investment in investment entities

Investment entity - controlled subsidiary 2022 2021
€ €

Opening fair value - -

Additions — non cash in investment entities 21,355,688

Fair value movement 970,040 -

Closing fair value 22,325,728 -

All investments in investmant entities are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There are no transfers in
or out of Level 3 in the year {2021: nil).

A 5% movement in the closing book value of investments in investment entities would have an impact of€1,116,286
(2021: nii).

The Partnership provides support to its investment entities for the purchase of underlying assets and ongoing
operations of the investment entities.

6 Payables
2022 201
€ €
Other Payables 12,385 227,103
12,385 227,103
7 Carried interest payable
2022 2021
€ €
Opening carried interest payable - -
Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 31,636,534 -
31,636,534 -
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 31,636,534 -

Carried interest payable at the batance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €38,454,405 (31 March 2021: nil).

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio (including those paortfolio
investments held by Investment entities) would result in a €6,384,336 increase in carried interest payable (31 March
2021: nin).

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio (including those
portfolio investments held by Investment entities) would result in a €6,384,336 decrease in carried interest payable
(31 March 2021: nil).

8 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
fncame and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk, capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investmenis operate. The Parnership’s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Parinership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnetship’s sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2022, the
Partnership was exposed to currency rigk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2022, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2022 € € €
GBP 4,577,077 8,738,056 12,637,211
usoD 14,143,152 27,000,563 38,739,938
18,720,229 35,738,619 51,277,149

As at 31 March 2021 € € €
GBP 3,457,620 6,599,766 9,469,229
usD 7,642,819 14,590,836 20,934,677
11,099,839 21,190,602 30,403,906

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €780,133,923
(2021: €437,131,033) and the total liabilities including accrual for carried interest were €31,648,919 (2021.

€227.103).

% of total Partnership assets 2022 2021
GBP 12.3% 16.6%
usb 38.1% 36.7%

50.4% 53.3%

2022: 100% {2021: 100%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in eures.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, econamic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in eleven portfolio investments. The aggregate return of the Partnership may be
materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of Evernex. This investment is concentrated
in the business service industry and thus the Partnership's performance will be closely linked to the performance
of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party witl be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnarship.

Credit nsk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership's investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investments is
based on the finrancial performance of the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due it
is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overal
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired. Hence, no separate maximum
exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is respensible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from

investments. As at 31 March 2022, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €856,436,258 (2021;
€1,052,741,848) which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2022,
the Partnership held €780,075,522 (2021: €437,114,308) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liguidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arsing from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met,
and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment or cash distribution from underying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fail due (see accounting policy
N).

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tabies are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks {continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between  more than 5
As at 31 March 2022 year 1- 5 years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables 12,385 - - 12,385
12,385 - - 12,385

As at 31 March 2021

Other payables 227,103 - - 227,103
227,103 - - 227,103

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €31,636,534 (31 March 2021: nil) has no stated maturity as
carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the timing
of when the investments will be soid. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Parinership is considered to be the capital contributions, Joan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €748,485,004 (2021: €436,903,930} at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back fo the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Parinership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when cerfain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2022 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 are set out in note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the Generat
Partner is entitled to receive a pricrity profit share equal to 1.00% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the prority profit share is equal to 1.00% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting pericd.

The Designated Limited partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of €2,000 based on its portion of the
Partnership. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitment in the Partnership.
€11 (2021: €4) was paid to the Designated Limited Partner.
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10 Related parties (continued)

General Partner (continued)

LP020194

The General Pariner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

Statement of comprehensive income
Priority profit share

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year

Management, administralive and secretarial arrangements

2021

€

1,164,195

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in

accordance with the LPA, in relation o investment expenses.

Statement of comprehensive income
Recharged costs

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year

2021
€

2,577,619
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11 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s retated undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
in this context, significart means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of

shares.

The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2022 are listed below.

Associates

Name

Alinghi 1

CTS BP Holdings GP LLC

European Bakery Group
BV,

T&J Holdco Limited

LP020194

Holding / Country of Principal
share class Address incorporation activity
16 place de !'Iris
24.84% Ordinary 92400 Investment
Shares Courbevoie, France holding vehicle
France

24.79% Ordinary
Shares

24.79% Ordinary
Shares

1 Grand Centrat
Place, East 42nd

Street, NY 10165,

United States

Investment
holding vehicle

UsA

Cometis

Schuytstraat 72, Investment
1071JL Nethertands holding vehicle

Amsterdam, NL

24.79% Ordinary
Shares

Trident Business
Park, Styal Road
Manchester,

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

WHCG GP LLC

24,84% Ordinary
Shares

MAIT Group GmbH

Himalaya Topco B.V.

Ten23 Health GP LLC

24.79% Ordinary
Shares

24.79% Ordinary
Shares

24.84% Ordinary
Shares

1 Grand Central
Place, East 42nd

Street, NY 10165,

USA

Berner Feld 10,
78628 Rottwell,

United States

Investment
holding vehicle

Investment
holding vehicle

Investment

Germany holding vehicle
Germany
Camelis
Schuyistraat 72, investment
1071JL Netherlands holding vehicle

Amsterdam, NL

1 Grand Central
Place, East 42nd

Street, NY 10165,

United States

UsA
Camelis
24.81% Ordinary  Schuytstraat 72,
Hydra Holdco B.V. Shares 1071JL Netherlands

Amsterdam, NL

3i Mountain LP

48.69%
Partnership
Interest

50 Lothian Road,
Festival Square,

Edinburgh, EH3

awy, UK

United Kingdom

Investment
halding vehicle

Investment
halding vehicle

Investment
holding vehicle
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12 Controlling party

3i is the ultimate parent undertaking of the Partnership and is also the controlling party of the Manager and of the
General Partner of the Partnership. Copies of the 3i financial statements which include the Partnership are available

from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.
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3i PE 2019-22 B LP

Strategic report

LP020195

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”} present their strategic report on 3i PE 2019-22 B LP (the

“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all

regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2022

€

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year before 76,680,032
carried interest expense

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 64,894,292

Net assets attributable to Partners 378,290,875

Tota! attributable to Partners 390,076,615

2021
€
27,303,300

27,303,300
218,790,135
218,790,135

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements

on pages 11 and 13.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €71,680,487 and offset by realised losses

of €3,236.

Asset cash flows were derived from portfolio income of €363,756 and proceeds from investments of €64,590. The

Partnership also distributed €660,469 to its Partners.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
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Strategic report (continued)

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

s Market price risk

s Currency risk

s  Concentration risk

s Credit risk

s Liquidity risk

» Interest rate risk

s Capital management

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose ptimary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 9.

For and an behalf of 3i Investments plc

DocuSighed by:
Jasi alai
OEA157T43D8F41A

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 11 May 2022

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 April 2019 in accordance with its Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA")
dated 30 April 2020 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership under the Limited Partnership
Act 1807. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner
of the Partnership is 3i GP 2019 Limited. The Designated Limited Partner is 3i 2019-22 DLP SCSp

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing ather than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in approprate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 12.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership’s current performance, financial position
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitor the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the portfolio
investments is limited, therefore this has no significantimpact on the Going Concem assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the uncertainties.

The Manager is satisfied through performing stress testing analysis that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn
commitments to draw down from Partners and the Partners have sufficient resources to be able to pay
commitments on demand. In addition the Partnership is in net current asset position and also has sufficient cash
resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Accordingly, the Manager believes that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the Members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.
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Members’ report (continued)
Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with clause 11.3 of the LPA, the auditor
will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

DacuSigned by:
Jasi Halai
0EA157743D8F1A

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date - 11 May 2022

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London
SW1ESJD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and the financial
statements. The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regutations.

The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Manager to prepare financial statements for each
financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law the
Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted intgrnational accounting
standards and applicable law.

Under company law the Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

*  assess the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclesing, as applicable,
matters related to going concem; and

* use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying
partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Parinership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. They
are responsible for such internai control as they determine is necessary te enable the preparation of financial
statements are free from material misstatement whether , due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reascnably open to them to safeguard the assets of the qualifying partnership and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Auditor’s report
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i PE 2019-22 B LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i PE 2019-22 B LP (the "gualifying partnership”} for the year ended
31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changses in Partners’
accounts, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of cash flows and the reiated notes, including the
accounting policies set out in notes Ato Q.

In our opinian the financial statements:

e« give atrue and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adepted international accounting standards; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UK)"y and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfiled our ethical responsibilites under, and are
independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The Members have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the gqualifying partnership or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the qualifying partnership’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also conciuded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In our evaluaticn of the Members’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the qualifying partnership's
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the qualifying parinership’s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

» we consider that the Members' use of the going cancern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financiai statements is appropriate;

« we have not identified, and concur with the Members’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the qualifying
partnership's ability to continue as a going concem for the going concem period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or condibons and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusians are
not a guarantee that the qualifying partnership will continue in operation.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due fo fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks") we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate art incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Qur risk assessment
procedures included:

¢  enquiring of the Mambers, the 3i Group plc Audit and Compliance Committee, and 3i Group plc internal
gudit and inspection of policy documentation as to 3i Group pic's high-level policies and procedures, as
applicable to the qualifying partnership, to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud,

+ reading meeting minutes of those charged with govemance.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
performed procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that
management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries, On this audit we do not believe there
is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of revenue is non-judgmental and
straightforward, with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We also identified a fraud risk related to the valuation of unguoted investments due to their highly judgemental
nature and use of unobservable inputs in their calculation.

We performed procedures including:

» identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting
documentation. These included all post year end and closing journals.
* assessing significant accounting estimates relating to valuation of unquoted investments for bias.

identifying and responding lo risks of material misstaterment due to non-compliance with faws and reguiations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the Members
(as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the Members the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations an the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the qualifying partnership is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the partnership including
financial reporting legislation {including related companies legislation} and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the qualifying partnership is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through
the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
anti-bribery, data protection, anti-money laundering and certain aspects of qualifying partnership legislation
recognising the nature of the qualifying partnership’s activities and its legal form. Auditing standards limit the
required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and other management and inspection of regulatory correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational
reguiations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant comespondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not respoensible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations,
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Strategic report and Members’ report

The Members are responsible for the Strategic report and the Members' report. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the Strategic report and the Members’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based
on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is matenally misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowtedge. Based sclely on that work:

« we have not identified material misstatements in those reports;

= in our opinion the information given in the Strategic report and the Members' repert for the financial year
is consistent with the financial statements; and

« in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required o report to you if, in our
opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

» certain disclosures of Members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Members’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Members’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the Members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar; assessing the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditer’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financiai statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https.//www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s Members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 20086, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the qualifying partnership’s Members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership and its Members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
TomquiAit

BASB3D30B09R40F
Fang Fang Zhou (Senior statutory auditor)
lor and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL

11 May 2022

10
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021

€ €
Portfolio income 1 8,598,050 5,134,322
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 71,195,466 22,355,674
Fair value movements on investment entities 5 485,021 -
Beahsed (losses)/profits over value on the disposal of 5 (3,236) 31,533
Investments
Gross investment return 80,275,301 27.521,529
Prigrity profit share 10 (656,738) (199,160)
Deal related costs {2,761,292) (9.124)
Operating expenses 3 {105) (80}
Foreign exchange losses (177.134) (9,865)

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year
before carried interest expense

Carried interest expense 7 (11,785,740) -

76,680,032 27,303,300

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 64,894,292 27,303,300

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 27 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

"
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2022
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account  {oss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 73047 190,372,838 28,344,250 218,790,135
accounts
Drawdowns from Partners - 95,266,917 - 05,266,917
Distributions to Partners - (660,469} - (660,469)
73,047 284,979,286 28,344,250 313,396,583
F’roﬂt and Total comprehensive ) ) 64,804,292 64,894,292
income for the year
Closing balance of Partners’ 284.979.2 9 542 90,8
accounts 73,047 , ,286 3,238, 378,290,875
for the year ended 31 March 2021
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 73,047 78,473,907 1,040,950 79,587,904
accounts
Drawdowns from Partners - 111,898,931 - 111,898,931
73,047 190,372,838 1,040,950 191,486,835
Proﬁt and Total comprehensive ) ) 27,303,300 27,303,300
income for the year
Closi | g
osing balance of Partners 73047 190,372,838 28344250 218,790,135

accounts

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 27 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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3i PE 2019-22 B LP LP020195
Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2022
Notes 2022 2021

€ €
Non-current assets
Investments
Unquoted investments 4 378,874,930 218,557,107
Investment in investment entities 5 11,162,865 -
Total non-current assets 390,037,795 218,557,107
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 44 745 346,556
Total current assets 44 745 346,556
Total assets 390,082,540 218,903,663
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 7 (11,785,740) -
Total non-current liabilities (11,785,740} -
Current liabilities
Payables 6 (5,925) {113,528)
Total current liabilities (5,925) {113,528)
Total liabilities (11,791,665) {113,528)
Net assets attributable to Partners 378,290,875 218,790,135
Represented by:
Capital contributions 73,047 73,047
Loan account 284,979,286 190,372,838
Profit and loss accounts 93,238,542 28,344 250
Net assets attributable to Partners 378,290,875 218,790,135
Carried interest allocation 11,785,740 -
Total attributable to Partners 390,076,615 218,790,135

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 27 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For and ¢n behaif of 3i Investments plc

DocuSigned by:
@s& Hala

DEA1STT4I08F41A
Jasi Halaj
Authorised Signatory

Date: 11 May 2022

13
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (66,155,534) (111,910,071)
Proceeds from investments 2 64,590 74,495
Deal related costs paid (2,761,560} (9,124)
Portfolic income received 363,756 305,647
Priority profit share paid {656,738) {199,160}
Operating expenses paid {105} (80)
Net cash flow from operating activities (69,145,591)  (111,738,293)
Cash flow from financing activities
Distributions paid (660,469) -
Drawdowns' 69,681,383 111,898,931
Net cash flow from financing activities 69,020,914 111,898,931
Change in cash and cash equivalents (124,677) 160,638
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 346,556 195,783
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (177,134) {9,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44,745 346,556

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 27 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The drawdowns from Partners of €95,266,917 is comprised of €68,681,383 of cash drawdowns and €25,585,534
non-cash drawdowns. As a result, the non-cash element has been excluded from the presentation within the
Statement of cash flows.

14
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Significant accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying
Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

New standards and interpretations

The Partnership did not implement the requirements of any other standards or interpretations that were in issue;
these were not required to be adopted by the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2022. No other standards
or interpretations have been issued that are expected to have a material impact on the Partnership's financial
statements.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been consistently applied and apply to all years presented.

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership’s current perfarmance, financial positien
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitor the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the pertfolio
investments is limited, therefore this has no significant impact on the Going Concern assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the uncerainties.

The Manager is satisfied through performing stress testing analysis that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn
commitments to draw down from Partners and the Pariners have sufficient resources fo be able to pay
commitments on demand. In addition the Partnership is in net current asset position and also has sufficient cash
resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Accordingly, the Manager believes that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
histerical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and O and discussed
in notes 4 and 5. The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carmried interest payabie is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these porifolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment management services to investors
for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation; and measuring
and evaluating the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis remain unchanged.

15
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction and exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments represent equity and loan instruments which are managed on a fair value basis.
Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are classified as fair value through profit and loss or are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unqguoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines and IFRS 13, with reference to the most approprate information
available at the time of measurement.

interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value red uction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. "Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disciosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be abave the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F  Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into the
following compaonents:

I. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes fess any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period.

Il. Unrealised profits or l0sses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period.

ill. Fair value movements on investment entities are the movements in the carrying value of the Partnership's
subsidiaries, which are classified as investment entities under IFRS 10. The Partnership makes investments
in portfolio assets through these entities which are limited partnerships or corporate subsidiaries.

IV. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the retum from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration of
the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation ameng Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Staterment of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

i Offsetting financial assets and liabilities Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and ssttle the liabilities
simultaneously. As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no financial assets and liabilities are offset in the
Statement of financial position.

J  Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank .

K  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations made
in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for as a
deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts. A
distribution is recognised in the year when a distribution notice is issued by the Manager.

L Capital contributions and loan account Capital contributions and loan actount are classified as a
financial liability. Partners have committed amounts to the Partnership in accordance with the LPA. These
commitments will be satisfied through the contribution of capital and loan subscription amounts when admitted to
the Partnership. The amounts and the timings of calls for capital contribution and loan commitments from the
Limited Partners are at the discretion of the General Partner. Capital contributions and loan account are carried at
amortised cost.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase or decrease in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried
interest expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued cartied interest
results from a decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

O Investments in investment entities The Manager has concluded that an entity meets the definition of
an investment entity where its strategic objective is of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment
management services to investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and
capital appreciation; and measuring and evaluating the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair
value basis. These entities are typically Limited Partnerships and other intermediary hotding structures which holds
the Partnership's interest in the underlying investment portfolio.

There are two type of Investment entities identified by the Manager: (a) Investment entities that are controlled by
the Partnership, defined as ‘lnvestment entity - controlled subsidiaries’; and (b} Investment entities that are
managed by 3i Group ple but not controlled by the Partnership, defined as ‘Invesiment entity - other. Control, as
defined by IFRS 10, is achieved when the Partnership is exposed, or has rights, to varable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

investments in investment entities which are managed on a fair value basis and are classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value can increase or reduce from either cash flows to and
from the investment entities or from valuation movements in line with the Partnership’s valuation policy. The fair
value of such entities is the fair value of their portfolic investments, subject to any appropriate adjustments, plus
any other net assets held by the investment entities.
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Portfolio income
2022 2021
€ €
Interest income 8,588,412 4,809,150
Negotiation fees - 300,348
Fareign exchange on interest income 9,638 24,824
8,508,050 5,134,322
2 Realised (losses)/profits over value on the disposal of
investments
Unquoted 2022
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 64,590 64,590
QOpening carrying value of disposed investments (67,8286) (67,826)
(3,236} {3.236)
Unquoted 2021
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 74,485 74,495
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (42,962) {42,962)
31,533 31,533
3 Operating expenses
2022 2021
€ €
Bank charges 81 80
Other Expenses 24 -
105 80

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €15,564 (2021 €14 706) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow subsidiary.

4 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises of equity instruments of €244,894,766 (2021: €111,251,232)

and loan instruments of €133,980,164 (2021: €107,305,875).

The holding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty that investments will be sold

within one year.
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4 Investments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
tevel 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Ne Level 1 financial instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level! 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectty (i.e. derived from prices}

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
2022 2022 2022 2022
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unquoted investments - - 378,874,930 378,874,930
- - 378,874,930 378,874,930
2021 2021 2021 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unguoted investments - - 218,557,107 218,557,107
- - 218,557,107 218,557,107

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy authorised above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial pericd and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
Levet 3 in the year {2021: nil).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2922 2021

€ €

Opening fair value 218,557,107 79392121
Additions - cash 66,155,534 111,910,071
Additions — non cash 14,794,162 -
Additions — deferred consideration 6,193 113,528
Additions - interest 8,234,294 4,828,676
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (67,826) (42,963)
Fair value movement 71,195,466 22,355,674
Closing fair value 378,874,930 218,557,107
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4 Investments (continued)

A gross investment return of €80,275,301 (2021: €27,521,529) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive
income as portfolio income, unrealised profits on lhe revaluation of investments, fair value movement on investment
entities and realised profits aver value from the disposal of investments from Level 3 assets.

The fair values of all other assets and liabitities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting palicy
E.

The following table summarises the various valuation methodologies used by the Manager to fair value Level 3
instruments, the inputs and the sensitivities applied and the impact of those sensitives to the unobservable inputs.
The significant majority of the Partnership’s portfolio has so far mitigated the impacts of supply chain disruption
and inflation via pricing mechanisms and diversifying supplier base, an important consideration in the Partnership's
portfolio valuation at 31 March 2022. As part of the Manager's case-by-case review of the Partnership’s portfolio
companies the risks and opportunities from dimale change are an important consideration in the overall discussion
on fair value. These risks are adequately captured in the multiple sensitivity.

Level 3 unquoted investments

Methodology Description Inputs Fair value  Sensitivity on Fair value
at 31 key impact of
March  unobservable sensitivities
input
€m €m
Earnings Most commonly  Earnings multiples are 254 +5% 22
useq F’nvate. applied to .the earnings of (2021- (2021: 11
Equity vaiuation  the portfolic company to 192)
methodology determine the enterprise -5% {22}
Used for value. (2021:(11)
mvgstments Earnings m|..|It|pIes. For the assets
which are When selecting earnings
. A valued on an
typically multiple, the Manager . .
! earnings basis,
profitable and considers:
. the Manager
for which we . ;
. 1. Comparable listed has applied a
can determine a i N e
set of listed companies current 5% sensitivity to
. performance and through the earnings
companies and the cycle averages multiple
precedent ¥ 9 ple.
transactions, 2. Relevant market
where relevant,  transaction multiples
ith simil
" : z.ar. 3. Exit expectations and
characteristics

other company specific
factors

For point 1 and 2 of the
above the Manager selects
companies in the same
industry and, where
possible, with a similar
business model and profile
in terms of size, products,
services and customers,
growth rates and
geographic focus.
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4 Investments (continued)

Level 3 unquoted investments (continued)

LP020195

Methodology

Description

Inputs Fair value Sensitivity on
at31 key
March unobservable

€m input

Fair value
impact of
sensitivities

€m

The pre-discount multiple
ranges from 8.0x-20.0x
(2021: 14.1x — 16.5x)

Other inputs:

Earnings

Reperted eamnings are
adjusted for non-recurring
items, such as restructuring
expenses, for significant
corporate actions and, in
exceptional cases, run-rate
adjustments to arrive at
maintainable earnings.

The most commen
measure is earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation
("EBITDA").

Earnings are usually
obtained from portfolio
company management
accounts to the precading
quarter end, with reference
also to forecast earnings
and the maintainable view
of earnings.

Other

Used where
elements of a
business are
valued on
different bases

Values of separate 45 A 5% increase
elements prepareq on'one 2021: 26 in the closing
of the methodologies listed value

above.

2021:1
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5 Investment in investment entities

Investment entity - controlled subsidiary 2022 2021
€ €

Opening fair value - -

Additions — non cash in investment entities 10,677,844

Fair value movement 485,021 -

Closing fair value 11,162,865 -

All investments in investment entities are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There are no transfers in
or out of Level 3 in the year (2021 nil).

A 5% movement in the clasing book value of investments in investment entities would have an impact of €558,143
(2021: nil).

The Partnership provides support to its investment entities for the purchase of underlying assets and ongoing
operations of the investment entities.

6 Payables
2022 2021
€ €
Other Payables 5,925 113,528
5,925 113,528
7 Carried interest payable
2022 2021
€ €
Opening carried interest payable - -
Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 11,785,740 -
11,785,740 -
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 11,785,740 -

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €14,260,381(31 March 2021: nil).

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio (including those portfolio
investments held by Investment entities) would result in a €1,001,052 increase in carried interest payable (31 March
2021: nil).

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolic (including those
portfolio investments held by Investment entities) would result in a €1,001,052 decrease in carried interest payable
(31 March 2021: nil).

8 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has ne liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Parnership's market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarity fram unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partrnership's sensitivity to price risk is analysed in rote 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2022, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2022, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2022 € € €
GBP 2,288,541 4,369,033 6,268,613
UsD 7,071,576 13,500,282 19,369,969
9,360,117 17,869,315 25,638,582

As at 31 March 2021 € € €
GBP 1,728,510 3,299,883 4,734,615
usoD 3,821,531 7,295,650 10,467,672
5,550,041 10,595,633 15,202,287

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’'s exposure to foreign currency exchange rales with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €390,082,540
{2021: €218,803,663) and the total liabilities including accrual for carned interest were €11,791,665 (2021

€113,528).

% of total Partnership assets 2022 2021
GBP 12.3% 16.6%
uspo 38.0% 36.7%

50.3% 53.3%

2022: 106.0% (2021: 100.0%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, econamic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Parnership participates in eleven portfolio investments. The aggregate return of the Partnership may be
materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of Evernex. This investment is concentrated in
the business service industry and thus the Partnership’s performance will be closely linked to the perfermance of
this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership's investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investments is
based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies. For those assets that are not past due it
is beliesved that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overalt
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired. Hence, no separate maximum
exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from

investments. As at 31 March 2022, the Parinership has undrawn commitments of €433,556,948 (2021:
€528,823,865) which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2022,
the Partnership held €390,037,795 (2021: €218,557,107) in investiments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met,
and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment or cash distribution from underlying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy
N}.

The foliowing table anaiyses the Partnership's liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued}

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between  more than §
As at 31 March 2022 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables 5,825 - - 5,925
5,925 - - 5,925

As at 31 March 2021

Other payables 113,528 - - 113,528
113,528 - - 113,528

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €11,785,740 (31 March 2021: nil) has no stated maturity as
carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the timing
of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no ather liabilities to anatyse inta relevant maturity
groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has ne significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €378,290,875 (2021: €218,790,135) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2022 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 are set outin note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitied to receive a priority profit share equai to 1.00% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the Genera! Parner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership’s activities. After the investment period expiry date, the prority profit share is equal to 1.00% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or parmanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The Designated Limited partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of €2,000 based on its portion of the
Partnership, This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitment in the Partnership.
€7 (2021 €6) was paid to the Designated Limited Partner.
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10 Related parties (continued)

General Partner (continued)

LP020195

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsibie for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

Statement of comprehensive income
Pricrity profit share

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

2021

€
199,160

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i ple, a subsidiary of 3i, in

accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

Statement of comprehensive income
Recharged costs

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year

2021

€
9,035
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11 Related undertakings

Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership's related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominai value of any class of
shares.

The Partnership’s related underakings at 31 March 2022 are listed below.

Associates
Holding / Country of Principal
Name share class Address incorporation activity
3i Mountain LP 24 .84% 50 Lothian Road, United Kingdom Investment
Partnership Festival Square, holding vehicle
Interest Edinburgh, EH3
oW, UK

12 Controlling party

3iis the uitimate parent undertaking of the Partnership and is also the controlling party of the Manager and of the
General Partner of the Partnership. Copies of the 3i financial statements which include the Partnership are available
from 16 Patace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP {the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2022

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group ple ("3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2022 2021

€ €

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 1,959,268 640,203
Net assets attributable to Partners 8,429,974 5,023,673

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements
on pages 11 and 13.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the investments and investments in investment entities of €1,803,283

and portfolio income of €253,508.

Asset cash flows were derived from portfolic income of €48,356 and proceeds from investments of €1,629.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
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Strategic report {(continued)

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

e  Market price risk

e  Currency risk

e  Concentration risk

*  Credit risk

e Liquidity risk

* Interest rate risk

 Capital management

*  Operational impact of COVID-19

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns fo investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership's associated risk policies are found in note 8.

For and on behalf of 3i investments pic
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Parnership for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 April 2019 in accordance with its Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA")
dated 30 April 2020 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership under the Limited Partnership
Act 1907 The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner
of the Partnership is 3i GP 2019 Limited. The Designated Limited Partner is 3i 2019- 22 DLP SCSp.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests wordwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 12.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership's current performance, financial position
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitor the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the portfolio
investmeants is limited, therefore this has no significantimpacton the Going Concem assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the uncertainties.

The Manager has prepared a cash flow forecast and is satisfied that through a combination of commitments to
draw down from Partners and cash resources that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable
future and for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. The Manager also
considered the ability of Limited Partners to pay their commitments as part of this analysis. Accordingly, the
Managet betieves that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Partnership made a drawdown of €1,242,064 on 14 Aprit 2022.
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Members’ report (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the Members confirns that: {a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with clause 8.1 of the LPA, the auditor will
be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pl¢

DocuSigned by:
Sast Hala
OEA157743D8F41A

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 23 May 2022

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 54D
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and the financial
statements. The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Manager to prepare financial statements for each
financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law the
Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and applicable law.

Under company law the Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted mternational accounting
standards;

« assess the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

« use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying partnership
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adeqguate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts} Regulations 2008. They
are responsible for such intemal contral as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements are free from material misstatement whether , due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the gqualifying partnership and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Auditor’s report
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP ({the “qualifying partnership”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in
Partners’ accounts, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including
the accounting policies set out in notes A to M.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs {(UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibiliies under, and are
independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The Members have prepared the financial statements on the geing concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the qualifying partnership or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the qualifying partnership’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the Members' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the qualifying partnership’s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the qualifying partnership’'s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

» we consider that the Members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

* we have not identified, and concur with the Members' assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the gualifying
partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concem period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subseguent events may resuit in cutcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the qualifying partnership will continue in operation.
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Auditor’'s report (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and reguiations — ability to detect
identifying and responding to risks of malerial rmisstatermnent due to fraud

To entify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

*  enquiring of the Members, the 3i Group plc Audit and Compliance Committee, and 3i Group plc internal
audit and inspection of policy documentation as to 3i Group plc's high-level policies and procedures, as
applicable to the qualifying partnership, fo prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

s reading meeting minutes of those charged with govemance.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the contral environment, we
performed procedures tc address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that
management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there
is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of revenue is non-judgmental and
straightforward, with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We also identified a fraud risk related to the valuation of unguoted investments due to their highly judgemental
nature and use of unobservable inputs in their calculation.

We performed procedures including:

* identifying journal entries ta test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting
documentation. These included all post year end and closing journals.
« assessing significant accounting estimates relating to valuation of unquoted investments for bias.

identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reascenably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the Members
(as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the Members the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
noen-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the qualifying partnership is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the partnership including
financial reporting legislation {including related companies legislation) and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the qualifying partnership is subject to many other Jaws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through
the impaosition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
anti-bribery, data protection, anti-money laundering and certain aspects of qualifying partnership legislation
recognising the nature of the qualifying partnership's activities and its legal form. Auditing standards limit the
required audit procedures to identify non-compiiance with these laws and regulations to enguiry of the directors
and other management and inspection of regulatory correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational
regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant carrespondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing fo the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and reguiations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

in addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-comgpliance with all laws and regulations.



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF2016B8-FEE7-48C0-BE93-0474ACAAEIF3

PE 2019-22 Co-invest LP LP020196

Auditor’s report (continued)

Strategic report and Members’ report

The Members are responsible for the Strategic report and the Members' report. Our opinion on the financial
, statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any farm of assurance canclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Strategic report and the Members’ report and, in deing so, consider whether, based
on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

+« we have not identified material misstatements in those reports;

« in our opinion the information given in the Strategic report and the Members' report for the financial year
is consistent with the financial statements; and

* in our apinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our
opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

« cerlain disclosures of Members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Members’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Members' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the Members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
cehtrol as they determing is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue as a going

; concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern: and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
| https:/fwww frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts} Regulations 2008. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the qualifying partnership's Members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership and its Members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we have formed.

DecuSigned by:
l 2 Palt
‘ tﬁg}y

8946049634BE4AA
Benjamin Pott (Senior statutory auditor}
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL

23 May 2022
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021

€ €

Portfolio income 1 253,508 155,177
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 1,791,081 562,410
Fair value movements on investment entity 8 12,202 -
Reallsed (losses)/profits over value on the disposal of 2 (85) 791
investments
Gross investment return 2,058,706 718,378
Priority profit share 9 (2,000) (2,000)
Deal related costs (21,898) {21,716)
Operating expenses 3 (67,326) (53,169)
Foreign exchange losses (6,214) (1,290)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 1,959,268 640,203

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 26 form an integral part of these financial

statements,

11
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2022
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account  loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 2,812 4,422,340 598,521 5,023,673
accounts
Drawdowns from Partners - 1,447,033 - 1,447,033
2,812 5,869,373 598,521 6,470,706
_Proﬁt and Total comprehensive A ) 1,959,268 1,950.268
income for the year
Closing balance of Partners' 0373 2 842
accounts 2,812 5,869, 557,788 429,974
for the year ended 31 March 2021
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of Partners 2.812 2.124,748 (41,682) 2,085,878
accounts
Drawdowns fram Partners - 2,297,592 - 2,297,592
2,812 4,422,340 (41,682) 4,383,470
F’roﬂt and Total comprehensive ) i 640,203 640,203
income for the year
losi '
Closing balance of Partners 2,812 4,422,340 598,521 5,023,673

accounts

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 26 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021

€ €
Assets
Non-current assets
investments
Unguoted investments 4 9,531,482 5,498,337
Investment in investment entity 5 280,827 -
Total non-current assets 9,812,309 5,498,337
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 316,383 229,143
Total current assets 316,383 229,143
Total assets 10,128,692 5,727,480
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 4] (1,698,718} (703,807)
Total current liabilities {1,698,718) (703.807)
Total liabilities {1,698,718) (703,807)
Net assets attributable to Partners 8,429,974 5,023,673
Represented by:
Capital contributions 2,812 2,812
Loan account 5,869,373 4,422 340
Profit and loss accounts 2,557,789 598,521
Net assets attributable to Partners 8,429,974 5,023,673

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 26 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

6@&( Pfahsdr

DEA157743D8F41A

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

Date: 23 May 2022
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Statement of cash flows

far the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes 2022 2021
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (1,664,311) (2,815,370}
Proceeds from investments 2 1,629 1,875
Deal reiated costs paid {21,898) {21,716)
Partfolic income received 46,356 33,701
Priority profit share paid (2,000} {2.000)
Operating expenses paid (569,597) (43,315)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,699,821} (2,846,825)
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 1,447 175 2,688,552
Bridging loan 1,683,382 2,675,673
Bridging loan repaid (1,337,282) {2,313,901)
Net cash flow from financing activities 1,793,275 3,050,324
Change in cash and cash equivalents 93,454 203,499
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 229,143 26,934
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (6,214) {1,290}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 316,383 229,143

The accounting policies on pages 15 to 17 and the notes on pages 18 to 26 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Significant accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying
Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulation 2008.

New standards and interpretations

The Partnership did not implement the requirements of any other standards or interpretations that were in issue;
these were not required to be adopted by the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2022. No other standards
or interpretations have been issued that are expected to have a material impact on the Partnership’s financial
statements.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been consistently applied and apply to all years presented.

The Manager has made an assessment of going concern for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, taking into account the Partnership’s current performancg, financial position
and the principal and emerging risks facing the business. The Manager continues to monitar the recent geo-political
uncertainties. The Partnership has no direct exposure to Russia or Ukraine, and the exposure across the portfolio
investments is limited, therefore this has no significant impact on the Geing Concern assessment of the Partnership.
The Partnership is not deemed to be exposed to any additional liquidity risk from a Limited Partner commitment
and drawdown perspective as a result of the unceriainties.

The Manager has prepared a cash flow forecast and is satisfied that through a combination of commitments to
draw down from Partners and cash resources that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable
future and for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. The Manager also
considered the ability of Limited Partners to pay their commitments as part of this analysis. Accordingly, the
Manager believes that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumpticns that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about camrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The mest significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodclogies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and M and discussed
in notes 4 and 5.

The Manager has conciuded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment management services to investors
for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation; and measuring
and evaluating the performance of substantially ali of its investments on a fair value basis remain unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into eurcs at the c¢losing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign cumency transactions are
translated into euros at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction and exchange differences arising on
settlernent or translation of monetary items are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

E Investments Investments represent equity and loan instruments which are managed on a fair value basis.
Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their rade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settiement of the investment.

Investments are classified as fair value through profit and Ioss or are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital (“IPEV"} valuation guidelines and
IFRS 13, with reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement.

E Investments

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised cn a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capilalisalion al nid value” is the term used to describe the capualisation ot accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investrment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note 1.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquaoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F  Revenue recagnition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into the
following components:

1. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period.

I Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period.

. Fair value movements on investment entities are the movements in the carrying value of the Partnership's
subsidiaries, which are classified as investment entities under IFRS 10. The Partnership makes investments
in portfolio assets through these entities which are limited partnerships or corporate subsidiaries.

IV. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the retun from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be ecanomic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
interest rate applicabie and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverabie.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration of
the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Offsetting financial assets and liabilities Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultanecusly. As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no financial assets and liabilities are offset in the
Statement of financial position.

16
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

J Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank.

K Capital contributions and loan account Capital contributions and loan account are classified as a
financial liability. Partners have committed amounts to the Partnership in accordance with the LPA, These
commitments will be satisfied through the contribution of capital and loan subscription amounts when admitted o
the Partnership. The amounts and the timings of calls for capital contribution and loan commitments from the
Limited Partners are at the discretion of the General Partner. Capital contributions and loan account are carried at
amortised cost.

L Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up 10 the Statement
of financial position date.

M Investments in investment entities The Manager has concluded that an entity meets the definition of
an investment entity where its strategic objective is of investing in portfolio investments; providing investment
management services to investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and
capital appreciation; and measuring and evaluating the perfarmance of substantially alt of its investments on a fair
value basis. These entities are typically Limited Partnerships and other intermediary holding structures which holds
the Partnership's interest in the underlying investment portfolio.

There are two type of Investment entities identified by the Manager. (a) Investment entities that are controlled by
the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - controlled subsidiaries’; and (b) Investment entities that are
managed by 3i Group plc but not controlled by the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - other'. Contral, as
defined by IFRS 10, is achieved when the Partnership is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Investments in investment entities which are managed on a fair value basis and are classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value can increase or reduce from either cash flows to and
from the investment entities or from valuation movements in line with the Partnership’s valuation policy. The fair
value of such entities is the fair value of their portfolio investments, subject to any appropriate adjustments, plus
any other net assets held by the investment entities.
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Portfolio income
2022 2021
€ €
Intergst income 216,061 120,985
Negotiation fees 37,205 33,567
Foreign exchange on interest income 242 625
253,508 155,177
2 Realised (losses)/profits over value on the disposal
of investments
Unquoted 2022
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 1,629 1,629
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (1,714) (1.714)
(85) (85)
Unquoted 2021
Investments Total
€ €
Proceeds from investments 1,875 1,875
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (1,084} {1,084)
791 791
3 Operating expenses
2022 2021
€ €
Audit fees 13,565 12,269
Bank charges 183 80
Administration expenses 8,500 7,700
Professional fees 32,378 28,156
Bridging Loan interest 12,700 4,964
67,326 53,169
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4 Investments
The fair value of unquoted investments comprises of equity instruments of €6, 160,899 (2021: €2,798,809) and loan
instruments of €3,370,583 (2021: €2,699,528).

The halding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty that investments will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e, derived from prices)

Levet 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
2022 2022 2022 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unquoted investments - - 9,531,482 9,531,482
- - 9,531,482 9,531,482
2021 2021 2021 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Unguoted investments - - 5,498,337 5,498,337
- - 5,498,337 5,498,337

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy authorised above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reperting pericd. There were no transfers in or out of
Level 3 in the year (2021: nil).
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4 Investments (continued)

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2022 2021

€ €

Opening fair value 5,498,337 1,997,286
Additions — cash 1,664,311 2,815,370
Additions — non cash 372,158 -
Additions — deferred consideration 156 2,879
Additions — interest 207,153 1,21,476
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (1,714) (1,084}
Fair vajue movement 1,791,081 562,410
Closing fair value 9,531,482 5,498,337

A gross investment return of €2,056,706 (2021: €718,378) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive
income as poartfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments, Fair value movements on
investment entities and realised profits over value from the disposal of investments from Level 3 assets.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E.

The following table summarises the various valuation methodologies used by the Manager to fair value Level 3
instruments, the inputs and the sensitivities applied and the impact of those sensitives to the unobservable inputs.
The significant majority of the Partnership's portfolic has so far mitigated the impacts of supply chain disruption
and inflation via pricing mechanisms and diversifying supplier base, an important consideration in the Partnership's
portfolio valuation at 31 March 2022 As part of the Manager's case-by-case review of the Partnership’s portfolio
companies the risks and opporiunities from climate change are an important consideration inthe overall discussion
on fair value. These risks are adequately captured in the multiple sensitivity.
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4 Investments (continued)
Level 3 unquoted investments
Methodology Description Inputs Fair value Sensitivity on Fair value
at 31 key impact of
March unobservable sensitivities
input
€ €
Earnings Most commonly  Earnings multiples are 8,676,055 +5% 550,344
useq Prlvate. applied to .the earnings of (2021- (2021:
Equity valuation  the portfolio company te 4,831,136) 276.113)
methodology determine the enterprise e -5% !
Used for value. (550,344)
investments Earnings multiples {2021:
F
which are When selecting earnings or the assets (282,983))
. ) valued on an
typically multipie, the Manager ) .
. earnings basis,
profitable and considers:
. the Manager
for which we ) .
. 1. Comparable listed has applied a
can determine a i s
. companies current 5% sensitivity to
set of listed ;
. performance and through the eamings
companies and the cycle averages muitiple
precedent Y g ple.
transactions, 2. Relevant market
where relevant, transaction multiples
with S|m1l.arv 3. Exit expectations and
characteristics

other company specific
factors

For point 1 and 2 of the
above the Manager selects
companies in the same
industry and, where
possible, with a similar
business mode! and profile
in terms of size, products,
services and customers,
growth rates and
geegraphic focus.

The pre-discount multiple
ranges from 8.00x-20.00x
(2021: 14.10x — 16.50x)

Other inputs:

Earnings

Reported earnings are
adjusted for non-recurring
items, such as restructuring
expenses, for significant
corparate actions and, in
exceptional cases, run-rate
adjustments to arrive at
maintainable eamings.
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4 Investments {continued)

Level 3 unquoted investments {continued)

Methodology  Description Inputs Fair value Sensitivity on Fair value
at 31 key impact of
March unobservable sensitivities
input
€ €
Earnings The mast commen
(continued) measure is earnings before

interest, tax, depreciation
and amaortisation
(‘EBITDA).

Earnings are usually
obtained from portfolio
company management
accounts to the preceding
quarter end, with reference
also to forecast earnings
and the maintainable view

of eamings.
Other (Price of Used where Values of separate 1,136,275 A 5% increase 56,814
recent elements of a elements prepared onone . inthe closing ]
transaction} business are of the methodologies listed (2021: value (2021:
usin 9 667,201) 33,360)
valued on above.
different bases
5 Investment in investment entities
Investment entity — controlled subsidiary 2022 2021
€ €
Opening fair value - )
Additions — non cash in investment entities 268,625
Fair value movement 12,202 -
Closing fair value 280,827 -

All investments in investment entities are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There are no transfers in
or out of Level 3 in the year (2021: nil).

A 5% movement in the closing book value of investments in investment entities would have an impact of €14,041
(2021: nil}.

The Partnership provides support to its investment entities for the purchase of underlying assets and ongoing
operations of the investment entities.
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6 Payables

2022 2021
€ €
Bridging Loan 1,658,696 661,259
Interest on bridging loan 5,633 609
Accrued expenses 34,090 39,060
Other payables 299 2,879
1,608,718 703,807

7 Taxation

Na provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners.

8 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Pannership's market risk is regutarly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Parnership's sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2022, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2022, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
fallowing table.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2022 € € €
GBP 57,053 108,918 156,274
usnD 177.223 338,335 485,438
234,276 447,253 641,712

As at 31 March 2021 € € €
GBP 42,208 80,579 115,613
uspD 95,571 182,453 261,781
137,779 263,032 377,394
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8 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk {continued)

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership's exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €10,128,692
(2021: €5,727 480} and the total liabilities were €1,698,718 (2021: €703,807).

% of total Partnership assets 2022 2021
GBP 12.0% 16.0%
uso 36.9% 35.3%
48.9% 51.3%

% of total Partnership liabilities 2022 2021

P

GBP 1.2% 3.8%
us 0.8% 1.7%
2.0% 5.5%

2022: 98.0% (2021: 94.5%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in eleven portfolio investments. The aggregate return of the Partnership may be
materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of Evernex. This investment is concentrated in
the business service industry and thus the Partnership’s performance will be closely linked to the performance of
this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in refation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considerad and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investments is
based on the financial perfarmance of the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due it
is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 manths, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired. Hence, no separate maximum
exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity nisk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from

investments. As at 31 March 2022, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €12,253,815 (2021: €13,700,848)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the nermal course of business. As at 31 March 2022,
the Partnership hels €9,812 309 (2021: €5,498,337) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager
manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities incurred
by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.
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8 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity greupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
iess than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2022 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 1,698,718 - - 1,688,718
1,608,718 - - 1,608,718
As at 31 March 2021
Other payables and accrued expenses 703,807 - - 703,807
703,807 - - 703,807

The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capitat Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, laan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totailed €8,429,074 (2021: €5,023,673} at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purpcses and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

9 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Bridging Loan

in accordance with the LPA, the Partnership is entitled to call a bridging loan from 3iin order to pay for
the cost of investments and Partnership expenses. During the year to 31 March 2022, 3i had
advanced €2,327,044 to the Partnership and €1,337,282 was repaid back to 3i. As at 31 March
2022, €1,664,329 (2021: €661,868) remained payable back to 3i.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. The Partnership pays a fixed pricrity profit share
of €2,000 per annum to its General Partner.

The Designated Limited partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of €1,000 based onits portion of the
Partnership. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitment in the Partnership.
€12 {2021: €6) was paid 1o the Designated Limited Partner.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being respensible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i-Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.
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9 Related parties (continued)

General Partner (continucd)

2022
Statement of comprehensive income €
Priority profit share 2,000

LP020196

2021

2,000

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in

accordance with the LPA_in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2022 2021
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 62,776 57,418
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 34,089 30,668

Related Undertakings

The Partnership has na interest in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures which would be classified as

Related undertakings under the Companies Act 2006.

10 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.

11 Events after the balance sheet date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Partnership made a drawdown of €1,242,064 on 14 April 2022.
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